
Meeting of:  Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: Tuesday, 18th July, 2017
Time: 2.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Ite
m 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  MINUTES 3 - 7

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board held 28th March 2017. 

4.  SHADOW INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD 8 - 17

To consider the minutes of the meetings held: 11th April, 9th May and 
13th June 2017. 

5.  HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - DRAFT WORK 
PROGRAMME 2017/18 

18 - 21

Draft Work Programme 2017/18 

6.  HEALTHWATCH ROCHDALE - ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 22 - 45

Annual Report for HealthWatch: 2016/17 

7.  JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT 46 - 47

Public Document Pack



To outline how the Board will fulfil its statutory duty to produce a Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment 

8.  HEALTH AND EMPLOYMENT 48 - 51

 The Board to consider the links between Health and Employment

Health and Wellbeing Board Members:

Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Rob Bellingham
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Sheila Downey Dr Chris Duffy
Andrea Fallon Gail Hopper
Steve Taylor Jane Jackson
Councillor Donna Martin E Steve Rumbelow
Chief Superintendent Chris Sykes Michelle Warburton
Simon Wootton
Keith Walker

Jon Aspinall
Sally McIvor

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson 
Governance and Committee Services Officer
01706 924715
Peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:Peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 28th March 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Emsley (in the Chair); Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Councillor Dearnley, A. Fallon, G. Hopper, S. Rumbelow (Rochdale Borough 
Council), S. McIvor (Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Group), B. Greenwood (HealthWatch Rochdale), S. Taylor 
(Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust), K. Walker (Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust), J. Aspinall (Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service) 
and M. Warburton (CVS Rochdale).   

OFFICERS: S. Croasdale and P. Dickinson (Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale NHS Clinical Commissioning Group) and P. Thompson (Rochdale 
Borough Council).  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: R. Bellingham (NHS England), Councillor 
Martin, S. Downey (Rochdale Borough Council) and J. Jackson (HealthWatch 
Rochdale).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
42 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
43 The Health and Wellbeing Board considered the minutes of its last 
meeting held 31st January 2017. Further to minute no. 35 (Membership of the 
Integrated Commissioning Board) in response to a question from the Board’s 
HealthWatch representative, asking if the membership of this body could be 
further extended, the Chief Executive reported that membership issues were 
being reviewed and further requests for organisations to be represented 
thereon would be considered in due course.

DECIDED - That the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, held 31st January 2017, be approved as a correct record.  

SHADOW INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD
44 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Shadow 
Integrated Commissioning Board held 14th March 2017, be noted.

ROCHDALE BOROUGHWIDE HOUSING
45 The Health and Wellbeing Board received a presentation from the Ms. 
Anna Charlton representing Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (RBH) regarding 
the services that they provide for their tenants in terms of their impact on 
health and wellbeing.

RBH had specialist teams that worked to promote health related issues such 
as the Independent Living Team which worked in close association with the 
Council’s Adult Care Service and the local NHS Clinical Commissioning 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Group helping to meet disability needs through adaptations and best use of 
existing homes and often supporting hospital discharges. 

The presentation referred to the RBH response team and to their ‘extra care’ 
facility that was based at the Harehill Court complex in Littleborough. The 
presentation also analysed the work of the RBH’s Community Partnership 
team. Their role was to engage with communities and deliver in partnerships, 
usually in most deprived parts of Borough:
• Pantry project 
• Gardening - Kirkholt
• Big Life health awareness courses
• Digital Inclusion
• Funding to local groups
• Combatting social isolation 

Members of the Board asked questions of the presenter seeking clarification 
on opportunities for work with staff from the Fire and Rescue Service, 
supported living options (for residents aged 55 years and over), RBH’s 
attitudes and policy in respect of complaints and the possibility of joint working 
between RBH and the Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust in terms of the 
provision of mental health services.

DECIDED – That the presentation be noted and welcomed.

CAMHS LOCAL TRANSFORMATION PLAN
46 The Health and Wellbeing Board considered a joint report of the 
Director of Children’s Services and the Director of Integrated Commissioning 
which advised as to the progress made against the January 2016 Child and 
Mental Health Services (CAMHS) Local Transformation Plan (LTP). The 
report also sought formal approval (and sign off) of the CAMHS LTP refresh.

Following publication of ‘Future in Mind’ local areas were required to develop 
and publish a Local Transformation Plan for CAMHS in January 2016.  HWBB 
approved the first LTP in 2016 and this had been published by 31st January 
2016 deadline. Local areas were required to publish a refreshed CAMHS LTP 
by 31st March 2017 – detailing progress made against priorities, financial 
allocations and future plans.  These are set out in a document that was 
appended to the submitted report and which had been developed by the 
Borough’s CAMHS Partnership.

DECIDED – That the Health and Wellbeing Board approves the refresh of 
the Borough’s Child and Mental Health Service (CAMHS) Local 
Transformation Plan (LTP), for publication by 31st March 2017.

LOCALITY PLAN
47 The Board received a report of the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group 
for Rochdale was presented, for Members to have sight of and an opportunity 
to comment on the developing Transformation Fund bid in support of the 
Rochdale Borough Locality Plan.

Page 4



Members of the Committee had received as background – 
 the draft Transformation Fund Bid (v3) 
 the six programme overviews circulated to Committee members in July 

2016
 an update report  on Locality Plan programme development submitted 

with Committee papers in November 2016.

Circulated at the meeting were
 the draft Transformation Fund Bid (v5) 
 The Locality Plan “Co-operating for a better health and wellbeing”
 One page overviews of the key themes within the bid
 Meeting presentation slides
 Notes of a meeting that members of the Health, School and Care 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 27th March 2017 

The Board received an update on the bid to ensure Members’ knowledge and 
appreciation of the Plan.

The Locality Plan was one of ten produced by each of the Greater Manchester 
(GM) districts that contributed to the GM System Transformation Plan to 
improve health outcomes and reduce health inequalities.  The Rochdale Plan, 
which had been subject to extensive consultation in the development phase, 
had been submitted to the GM Health and Social Care (HSC) Partnership in 
November 2016.  The changes proposed in the Rochdale Plan would be 
delivered through six inter-related work programmes; these were those 
contained in the programme overviews that were previously circulated to 
Board members in July 2016.

The Transformation Fund bid to the GM HSC Partnership provided an 
opportunity to bring significant funding to the Borough to assist in the delivery 
of the Locality Plan.  

The bid offered the opportunity to cover double running costs while assessing 
transformation proposals.  Consultation from earlier phases had been 
considered, and further engagement had been undertaken with a wide range 
of stakeholder including clinicians, staff, public and communities to develop 
the bid.  The Integrated Commissioning Board and the joint CCG 
Management Team/RBC Leadership Team had also been involved in the 
process.

The meeting received a presentation that addressed
 The matters that the bid would need to demonstrate
 The criteria against which the bid would be assessed
 Detail of the engagement to support the submission, along with 

engagement activities going forward
 The Cost Benefit Analysis that that required a 3:1 return on investment
 Managing delivery, performance and benefit
 Transformation Fund bid themes

Page 5



DECIDED – That the Rochdale Locality Plan Transformation Fund Bid, 
be approved in principle, subject to any minor amendments to be made 
before 31st March 2017 when the Bid is formally submitted and the Chair 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board, Councillor Emsley, be authorised to 
approve the final document for formal submission. 

SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY
48 The Director of Public Health and Wellbeing reported that she had, on 
2nd March 2017, held a training session for Rochdale MBC Members on the 
Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention Strategy. The training session had 
been well attended and feedback from those 16 Members who attended had 
been overwhelmingly positive.

To give an indication of the scale of the problem there had been 277 suicides 
in the Greater Manchester region in 2014. Of the 10 Greater Manchester 
Authorities 48 occurred in the City of Manchester but Rochdale was second 
with 31 (11%) which was proportionately higher than its population, which at 
around 210,000 was about 6% of Greater Manchester’s overall population.

DECIDED – That the report be noted and welcomed.   

ORAL HEALTH IMPROVEMENT STRATEGY STUDY GROUP
49 The Health and Wellbeing Board considered a report of the Oral Health 
Scrutiny Study Group which presented its final report of its study in oral 
healthcare.

In September 2015 the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee established a Scrutiny Study Group to attempt to gain an 
understanding of the prevalence and severity of dental decay amongst the 
Borough’s residents, especially amongst five year old children and to examine 
recommended actions for inclusion in the local Oral Health Improvement 
Strategy 2016 – 2020, to rectify the current situation. The Study was therefore 
closely linked to the development of the Borough’s Oral Health Improvement 
Strategy and was concerned with improving health outcomes for service users 
in the Rochdale Borough which should improve healthy life and wellbeing 
outcomes. As a consequence, this directly linked into the ‘People’, ‘Place’ and 
‘Prosperity’ corporate priorities of the Council.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

GREATER MANCHESTER CIVIL RESILIENCE ARRANGEMENTS 2016
50 The Health and Wellbeing Board received a report, for information 
purposes, that presented an overview of Greater Manchester’s civil resilience 
arrangements that had previously been considered by the Greater 
Manchester Police and Crime Steering Group.

DECIDED – That the report be noted. 

Page 6



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
2017/18
51 The Director of Public Health submitted a draft work programme 
designed to set the agenda for future meetings of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board starting in 2017/18. The Director was looking to have ‘themed’ 
meetings that would be guided and accompanied by presentations designed 
to encourage discussion and debate. It was suggested that the Health and 
Wellbeing Board have a separate development session, early in the 2017/18 
Municipal Year which would inform the Board’s Work Programme.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) the Health and Wellbeing Board resolves to hold an informal 

Development Session at a date and time to be determined, early in 
2017/18, for the purpose of developing its Work Programme.

Page 7



SHADOW INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 11 April 2017

PRESENT:   HMR CCG - Dr Chris Duffy (Clinical Chair) (in the Chair), Denise 
Dawson (Lay Member), Sam Evans (Chief Finance Officer), Dr Lynn  
Hampson (Clinical Lead); RBC - Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed (Portfolio Holder for 
Adult Services), Sheila Downey (Director of Adult Care), Councillor Janet 
Emsley (Portfolio Holder for Culture, Health and Wellbeing), Gail Hopper 
(Director of Children’s Services) and David Wilcock (Acting Director of 
Resources).

OFFICERS: Sally McIvor (Joint Director – Integrated Commissioning), Karen 
Hurley (HMR CCG Director of Operations and Engagement), Victoria 
Bradshaw (RBC Assistant Director (Finance), Susan Crutchley (RBC Acting 
Assistant Director of Public Health) and Tim Buckley and Mark Hardman 
(RBC Resources Directorate)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:  RBC - Andrea Fallon (Director of Public 
Health and Wellbeing), Councillor Donna Martin (Portfolio Holder for 
Children's Services) and Steve Rumbelow (Chief Executive); HMR CCG - Dr 
Bodrul Alam (Clinical Lead) and Simon Wootton (Chief Officer).

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
46 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
47 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Shadow 
Integrated Commissioning Board held on 14th March 2017 be approved 
as a correct record. 

SHADOW INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD BUSINESS 
PROGRAMMING
48 The Board considered a report presenting a schedule of business for 
the Shadow Integrated Commissioning Board arising from planned or routine 
scheduled business and issues arising from considerations at previous 
meetings of the Board.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.
Eligible for call-in:  No

BETTER CARE FUND BUDGET 2017/18
49 The Board gave consideration to a report of the RBC Director of 
Resources and the CCG Chief Finance Officer seeking agreement of the  
Better Care Fund (BCF) Budget and baseline contributions from partners for 
the financial years 2017/18 and 2018/19.

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



The recommendations were presented as the Board had delegated 
responsibility for the BCF budget.  Full details of Care Act funding and capital 
allocations that form part of the BCF budget remained to be confirmed 
meaning that 2016/17 allocations were shown in table 3 at paragraph 5.5, to 
be updated to the Board once confirmation of the 2017/18 and 2018/19 
allocations were known.  

Alternatives considered:  None, the report taking into account the BCF Policy 
Framework and Planning Guidance for 2017-19.

DECIDED – That (1) the proposed baseline contributions detailed in table 
2 at paragraph 5.3 to the submitted report, and which include the 
amendments to each partner Organisation’s contributions as detailed in 
paragraph 5.6 and noted at previous meetings of the Board, be agreed;

(2)  the 2017/18 and 2018/19 proposed Better Care Fund (BCF) 
budgets, as detailed in table 3 at paragraph 5.5 to the submitted report 
and which include the allocation of inflation and investment in 
equipment already noted at previous meetings of the Board, be agreed, 
it being noted that the balance of uncommitted funds are available for 
partners to submit further reports and business cases to the Board for 
consideration;

(3) the 2017/18 and 2018/19 allocation of the improved BCF 
notified in the settlement and Spring Budget, as detailed in table 4 at 
paragraph 5.7 to the submitted report, be agreed;

(4) it be noted that the allocations for the Care Act and Capital, as 
detailed in paragraph 5.2 to the submitted report, have yet to be 
confirmed.  
Eligible for call-in: Yes

Page 9



SHADOW INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 9 May 2017

PRESENT:  HMR CCG - Dr Chris Duffy (Clinical Chair) (in the Chair); 
Dr Bodrul Alam (Clinical Lead), Denise Dawson (Lay Member), Sam Evans 
(Chief Finance Officer), Dr Lynn Hampson (Clinical Lead), Paul Rowen (Lay 
Member); RBC - Councillor Janet Emsley (Portfolio Holder for Culture, Health 
& Wellbeing), Councillor Donna Martin (Portfolio Holder for Children's 
Services), Steve Rumbelow (Chief Executive), Andrea Fallon (Director of 
Public Health & Wellbeing), David Wilcock (Acting Director of Resources)

OFFICERS:   Sally McIvor (Joint Director – Integrated Commissioning), 
Victoria Bradshaw (Chief Finance Officer – RBC), Julie Murphy and Michael 
Garraway (Resources Directorate – RBC) 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed (Portfolio Holder for 
Adult Care - RBC), Shelia Downey (Director of Adult Care - RBC), Gail 
Hopper (Director of Children's Services - RBC) and Simon Wootton (Chief 
Officer – HMR CCG)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
50 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
51 Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting of the Shadow 
Integrated Commissioning Board held on 11th April 2017 be approved as 
a correct record.

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD - BUSINESS PROGRAMMING 
2017/18
52 The Board considered a report presenting a schedule of business for 
the Shadow Integrated Commissioning Board arising from planned or routine 
scheduled business and issues arising from considerations at previous 
meetings of the Board.

Alternatives considered: There were no alternatives considered.

Decision: That the report be noted. 

BETTER CARE FUND - 2016/17 FINAL OUTTURN
53 The Board gave consideration to a report of the Chief Finance Officer, 
Rochdale Borough Council, on the final outturn position of the Better Care 
Fund (BCF) for the financial year 2016/17.

In considering the report Members of the Board sought clarification on 
reported underspends specifically related to reablement and assisted 
technology, seeking assurances that all in requirement of resources were 

Page 10



receiving them. Members of the Board were advised all reported underspends 
were specific to the Better Care Fund but moving forward there would be 
opportunities to look at reablement services across various budgets.    

Alternatives considered: None, the report taking into account the BCF Policy 
Framework and Planning Guidance for 2017-19.

Reason for the decision: The recommendations were presented as the Board 
had delegated responsibility for the BCF budget.

Decision: That (1) the final outturn position for the Better Care Fund in 
2016/17 to be included in the final return made to NHS England in May 2017, 
be noted;
(2) the revenue underspend of £142k be transferred to the VAT provision 
against any possible liability in future years as agreed by the Board at Minute 
42(2) of the meeting held on 14th March 2017; in the event of this provision 
being found not to be required, the funds are to return into the Better Care 
Fund as future one-off funding and the RBC Chief Finance Officer report 
further on the release of the VAT provision back to the BCF;
(3) it be noted that the underspend on capital of £1,133k is returned to the 
Local Authority in line with the Section 75 agreement and that the Council’s 
Cabinet has agreed previously a carryover of £984k, with the carryover of the 
balance of  £149k to be approved by the Section 151 Officer in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of delegation;
(4) further reports be submitted to the Board presenting all reablement spend, 
whether in the ‘shadow’ pooled budget or the BCF, to enable understanding of 
total provision in the Borough and the related financial position; progress 
against the previously agreed actions in respect of the Integrated Equipment 
Store; and on the potential for virement within the Disabled Facilities Grant 
capital budget and assurance that opportunities provided by the Grant are 
being maximised.

UPDATED BETTER CARE FUND BUDGET 2017-19
54 The Board considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer, Rochdale 
Borough Council, seeking confirmation of the baseline contributions from 
partner organisations to the Better Care Fund for the financial years 2017/18 
and 2018/19, following confirmation of the Disable Facilities Grant allocation 
for 17/18 and the proposed carry over of capital budget from 2016/17.

Alternatives considered: There were no alternatives considered.

Decision: (1) the updated baseline contributions detailed in table 1 paragraph 
5.2 of the submitted report, which includes the capital budget carry forward 
and the 2017/18 DFG allocation, be approved;
(2) the updated 2017/18 and 2018/19 Better Care Fund budgets, as detailed 
in table 2 paragraph 5.2 of the submitted report which included the capital 
budget carry forward and the 2017/18 DFG allocation. 

Reason for decision: The Health and Wellbeing Board have delegated 
responsibility of the Better Care Fund to the Integrated Commissioning Board. 

Page 11



At the April ICB a budget was agreed subject to the Disabled Facilities Grant 
(DFG) being confirmed and budget carry forward amounts being agreed

REABLEMENT SERVICES FUNDED FROM THE BETTER CARE FUND - 
UPDATE
55 The Board considered a report of the Director of Adult Social Care for 
Rochdale Borough Council, the purpose of which was to update the Board on 
the reablement services funded from the Better Care Fund Plan in 2017/18 
and seeking support for the continued investment of these schemes for 
2017/18.

Decision: Consideration of the report be deferred to the next meeting of the 
Board.

Reason for decision: To enable the Board to seek further information from an 
appropriate Officer.

Page 12



SHADOW INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 13 June 2017

PRESENT:  HMR CCG – Dr Chris Duffy (Clinical Chair) (in the Chair); 
Dr Bodrul Alam (Clinical Lead), Denise Dawson (Lay Member), Sam Evans 
(Chief Finance Officer), Dr Lynn Hampson (Clinical Lead), Paul Rowen (Lay 
Member); RBC - Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed (Portfolio Holder for Adult Care), 
Councillor Jacqui Beswick (Portfolio Holder for Health & Wellbeing), Sheila 
Downey (Director of Adult Care), Andrea Fallon (Director of Public Health and 
Wellbeing), Gail Hopper (Director of Children's Services), Councillor Donna 
Martin (Portfolio Holder for Children's Services)

OFFICERS:   Sally McIvor (Joint Director – Integrated Commissioning), 
Victoria Bradshaw (Chief Finance Officer – RBC), Dianne David, Steve 
Blezard and Kathryn Andrew (Adult Care Directorate), Mark Hardman 
(Resources Directorate – RBC) 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:  HMR CCG – Simon Wootton (Chief Officer); 
RBC - Steve Rumbelow (Chief Executive) and David Wilcock (Acting Director 
of Resources)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
1 There were no declarations of interest.

CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
2 The Chair welcomed Councillor Jacqui Beswick, RBC Portfolio Holder 
for Health and Wellbeing, recently appointed to the Board, to the meeting.

The Chair advised this would be the last meeting of the Board attended by 
Mark Hardman, and the Board expressed their thanks for his support provided 
to the Board.

MINUTES
3 Decided – That the minutes of the meeting of the Shadow Integrated 
Commissioning Board held on 9th May 2017 be approved as a correct record.

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD - BUSINESS PROGRAMMING 
2017/18
4 The Board considered a report presenting a schedule of business for 
the Shadow Integrated Commissioning Board arising from planned or routine 
scheduled business and issues arising from considerations at previous 
meetings of the Board.  The Board was asked to note that the schedule was 
subject to change and development as the implementation of pooled budgets 
from April 2018 approached and any future decision at the Greater 
Manchester level relating to the reporting of Better Care Fund performance.

Alternatives considered: There were no alternatives considered.

Page 13



Decision: That the report be noted. 

Eligible for call-in: No

Reason for decision: The item was presented for information.

BETTER CARE FUND 2016/17 - NATIONAL INDICATOR PERFORMANCE 
UPDATE
5 The Board gave consideration to a report of the Director of Adult Care 
(RBC) providing information on performance against the Better Care Fund 
(BCF) indicator set for Quarter 4 of 2016/17 and presenting the relevant parts 
of the BCF Quarter 4 submission to the Department of Health (DoH).

Alternatives considered: None, as the report provided information on 
performance.

Decided: That (1) performance against the Better Care Fund (BCF) indicator 
set for Quarter 4 of 2016/17 be noted;
(2) the content of the BCF Quarter 4 performance template submitted to the 
Department of Health on 31st May 2017 be noted.

Eligible for call-in:  No.

Reason for decision: As part of the BCF planning guidance the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and the local authority are required to submit quarterly 
templates to the DoH on performance against jointly agreed targets for a 
number of nationally determined indicators and some locally determined 
indicators.  The Board reviews these submissions as part of its delegated 
responsibility for the BCF. 

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT ALLOCATION 2017/18
6 The Board gave consideration to a report of the Director of Adult Care 
(RBC) seeking approval of the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) capital grant 
allocation for 2017/18, taking into account the conditions attached to the grant 
and the opportunity for a level of flexibility to spend the funding on other social 
care capital projects, in addition to the traditional DFG activities.

Alternatives considered: There are no alternatives to ensuring that the 
statutory requirement to provide DFGs is met, as this is specific in the grant 
determination letter.  While other schemes had been considered, the 
proposed additional schemes which complement the DFG are in line with 
national good practice, meet the government desire to see more innovative 
use of the DFG, and are the most aligned to the funding conditions and 
national and local needs and aspirations.

Decision: That (1) the allocation of the Disabled Facilities Grant grant 
allocation for 2017/18, as detailed at paragraph 5, table 1 to the submitted 
report, be approved;

Page 14



(2) a consideration be given to undertaking minor adaptations over a 
weekend/moving to a seven day service to assist in hospital discharges 
performance and the use of contingency funds for this purpose.

Eligible for call-in: Yes

Reason for decision:  The Board is required to oversee the DFG capital 
allocation as part of the Better Care Fund (BCF).  A condition of the DFG 
determination is that it is spent in accordance with a BCF spending plan jointly 
agreed between the local authority and the Clinical Commissioning Group.

BETTER CARE FUND - SECTION 75 AGREEMENT 2017/18
7 The Board gave consideration to a report of the Director of Adult Care 
(RBC) advising that it was not possible to present an updated Section 75 
Agreement for the Better Care Fund (BCF) for 2017/18 until the new 
governance structure for integrated commissioning has been approved and 
the BCF guidance and template have been issued by the Department of 
Health and the Department of Communities and Local Government, and 
seeking agreement to the continued use of the current Agreement until an 
updated version could be presented to the Board.

Alternatives considered: The Board could receive an updated report for 
approval excluding the governance information and the annual BCF Plan, with 
those two sections coming for approval at a future meeting once the required 
information was available. The Section 75 Agreement is a lengthy legal 
document and it was felt to be counterproductive to take the document to two 
separate meetings for consideration and approval.   

Decided: That (1) it be noted that it is not possible to consider an updated 
Section 75 Agreement for approval until new governance arrangements have 
been approved and the Better Care Fund guidance and template for 2017/18 
have been issued by the Department of Health and the Department of 
Communities and Local Government;
(2) in the interim period, the 2016/17 Agreement be extended until the new 
Agreement can be brought for approval, noting that the budgets and 
contributions contained in the Section 75 have been updated to reflect those 
approved by the Board at the meeting on 9th May 2017.

Eligible for call-in: No

Reason for decision: The Section 75 Agreement contains information on the 
governance processes for the BCF.  The governance content of the 
Agreement cannot be updated until both a new integrated commissioning 
governance approach has been finalised and approved, and the Department 
of Health and the Department of Communities and Local Government BCF 
guidance for 2017/18 has been published. 

Page 15



RECOMMISSIONING OF SPRINGHILL RESOURCE CENTRE AS A LIVING 
WELL WITH DEMENTIA SERVICE - UPDATE
8 The Board gave consideration to a report of the Director of Adult Care 
(RBC) seeking a consideration of a revised specification for the 
redevelopment of the Springhill Resource Centre as a Borough-wide 
Dementia Service with a particular focus on people with Learning Disabilities 
as a result of a failed tender process and changing demand in the Borough.

Alternatives considered: The existing specification and financial envelope for 
the refurbishment of the building could be reaffirmed.  However, this could 
result in it not being possible to award the contract for the service meaning 
that service users would continue to go to out of Borough residential homes at 
a higher cost to meet their needs and that the opportunity to provide a holistic 
post diagnostic dementia service for the Borough would be missed.

Decided:  That the proposed changes to the outline specification for the 
Springhill Living Well with Dementia Service, as detailed in the submitted 
report, be approved, with a consideration to be given to offering the contract 
on a ‘two year with an option for extension to five years’ basis.

Eligible for call-in: Yes.

Reason for decision: Following an unsuccessful tendering process for the 
Springhill Living Well with Dementia Service it had been considered 
necessary to change the outline service specification to reflect the changing 
needs in the Borough and to attract more providers to submit a bid to deliver 
the service. 

FURTHER INFORMATION ON REABLEMENT SERVICES
9 The Board gave consideration to a report of the Director of Adult Care 
(RBC)  providing information on reablement spend in both the Better Care 
Fund (BCF) and in the ‘shadow’ pooled budget, as requested by the Board to 
give a holistic view of reablement spend.  The report added to and 
complemented the report of the Director of Adult Care, deferred from the 
meeting of the Board held on 9th May 2017 and contained as an appendix to 
the submitted report, that had provided an update on those reablement 
services to be provided from the BCF in 2017/18.  Further to that report, the 
2017/18 BCF investment was confirmed as - 

Schemes Proposed 
Investment

Dementia support workers £      60,600
Intermediate Care dementia flexible workers £      81,810
Mental Health outreach workers £    100,729 
Memory clinic dementia workers £      47,969 
Carers life after stroke £    130,097
Equipment Loan Store £    937,724
Total £ 1,358,656

Page 16



Alternatives considered:  The Board had requested the submitted information; 
as such, there were no alternatives to present. 

Decision: That (1) the report submitted to the meeting of the Board held on 9th 
May 2017 be noted and the 2017/18 reablement schemes be supported;
(2) further detail be provided on the dementia support services provided and 
the respective workloads;
(3) the £91k efficiency saving on STARS Plus in 2016/17 which has gone into 
the provision for VAT, and the reduced level of funding of £107k required for 
the STARS Plus service in 2017/18 as a consequence of the efficiency 
savings that have been made, be noted;
(4) it be noted that 50% of the reduced funding (£53.5k) in 2017/18 will be in 
the BCF and 50% will be in the Adult Social Care budgets in the ‘shadow’ 
pooled budget;
(5) it be noted that the £107k available in 2017/18 from the efficiency savings 
made by Adult Care in relation to STARS Plus are to be kept as a contingency 
to either support the closing of the financial gap or to enhance the STARS 
Plus service should there be a shortfall in the transformation funding received 
from the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership, further 
noting that as the £107k saving is as a consequence of efficiencies made 
within an Adult Care service some of the funding could be used towards the 
0.5% efficiency saving required of providers in the transformation bid.

Eligible for call-in: No

Reason for decision: The Board had requested details of the spend on 
reablement services, both in the BCF and across other budgets.

Page 17



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2017/2018

Standing Items for Every Meeting:-

 Presentation(s) from partner organisation or agency;
 Locality Plan/Integration Update;
 Shadow Integrated Commissioning Board Minutes (where available);

Meeting One – Date, tbc

Theme – Starting Well

Presentations:-
 Schools – contribution to health and wellbeing;
 Pennine Care (Health Visitors/School Nurses) – opportunities, challenges, working within new Agenda;

Agenda Items:-
 Children and Young Persons Partnership Update;
 Childhood Obesity Action Plan;
 Under 5’s Oral Health Update;
 Child and Adolescent Mental Health (CAMHS);
 Greater Manchester Early Years Strategy;

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 5



Meeting Two – Date, tbc

Theme – Living Well

Presentations:- 
 Link4Life/Big Life – new service provider update;
 Pennine Care – mental health strategy;

Agenda Items:-
 Diabetes Prevention Programme;
 Greater Manchester Mental Health Strategy;
 Alcohol Strategy;
 Tobacco Control in Pregnancy;

Meeting Three – Date, tbc

Theme – Aging Well

Presentations:-
 tbc

Agenda Items
 Falls Prevention;
 Malnutrition;
 Loneliness and Social Isolation;
 Dementia;
 Work and Health;

P
age 19



Meeting Four – Date, tbc

Theme – System Reform

Presentations:-
 tbc

Agenda Items:-
 Voluntary Sector Reform;
 Greater Manchester Primary Care;
 Greater Manchester Stronger Together;
 Greater Manchester Growth and Reform;

Meeting Five – Date, tbc

Theme – All Age 

Presentations:-
 tbc

Agenda Items
 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment;
 Suicide Prevention Strategy;
 JSNA Update;
 Public Health Annual Report;

P
age 20



Meeting Six – Date, tbc

Theme – Wider Determinants

Presentations:-
 tbc

Agenda Items:-
 Greater Manchester Transport Plan;
 Safer Communities Update;
 Greater Manchester Police Update;
 Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service Update;

Meeting Seven – Date, tbc  - Health and Wellbeing Assembly

 Items to be scheduled:-

Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 

Safeguarding Children Annual Report

P
age 21



Healthwatch Rochdale 1 
 

 

Healthwatch Rochdale 
Annual Report 2016/17 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



Healthwatch Rochdale 2 
 

Contents 
 

 

Message from our Chair ................................................................................... 3 

Message from our Chief Executive Officer ............................................................ 4 

Highlights from  our year ................................................................................. 5 

Who we are .................................................................................................. 6 

Our Healthwatch Team: .................................................................................. 6 

Your views on health and care .......................................................................... 8 

Helping you find the answers ........................................................................... 10 

Making a difference together ........................................................................... 13 

How your experiences are helping influence change .............................................. 14 

How we’ve worked with our community ............................................................. 15 

It starts with you .......................................................................................... 16 

Our plans for next year .................................................................................. 18 

What next? ................................................................................................. 19 

Our people .................................................................................................. 20 

Our finances ................................................................................................ 22 

Contact us .................................................................................................. 24 

 

 

  

Page 23



Healthwatch Rochdale 3 
 

Message from our Chair 
 

 

 

 

 

This is my second report as 
Chair of Healthwatch 
Rochdale, a role I am proud to 
serve in.   

The Board has continued to develop with 

new members joining us.  Unfortunately 

though we have said goodbye to two of our 

long-standing members, Christine Mullens 

and Mohammed Sawar, due to their work 

commitments. We thank them for their 

valuable contribution especially during the 

period when we moved from a private host 

organisation.  

The past year has seen many changes to our 

health and social care systems, not least 

those brought about by Devolution of 

Greater Manchester.  Although the 

Devolution programme is important it is 

also important that we do not lose sight of 

those issues which matter to the people in 

the Rochdale Borough.  Our work 

programme for the next twelve months has 

been developed following consultation with 

residents to ensure that we address those 

issues which matter to you.  

We continue to develop our relationships 

with the Clinical Commissioning Group and 

the Local Authority. This year we have set 

up forums with Pennine Acute and Pennine 

Care which bring together senior managers 

of the Trusts and other local Healthwatch 

whose residents use these organisations for 

their care. This has been particularly 

important following the recent CQC (Care 

Quality Commission) reports of both 

organisations 

Our Enter & View programme has continued 

and the reports of these visits can be seen 

on our website.  Several of these visits have 

been prompted by your feedback, so do 

please continue to send this in.  

As Chair, I would like to thank Kate and her 

team for the excellent work they have done 

in the past year, helped by our many 

volunteers, who give up their time willingly 

to get involved. My thanks also go to my 

fellow Board members who are willing to 

give up their time for something which they 

care about.  

Jane Jackson 

Chair   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pictured above: Jane Jackson, Healthwatch Rochdale Chair 

  

Page 24



Healthwatch Rochdale 4 
 

Message from our Chief 
Executive Officer
 

 

 

 

 

Pictured above: Kate Jones, Healthwatch Rochdale CEO 

2016/2017 was a very successful 
year for Healthwatch Rochdale. 

We continued to support decision makers to 

build something simpler, more efficient, 

better focused on what people want, and 

more supportive of people and 

communities. With more work to do and 

less money to do it with, our challenge is to 

try and keep the decision makers focused 

on people.   

Our relationships with partner organisations 

are crucial, this year we have continued to 

support several key committees and 

meetings such as Health, Schools and Care 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 

Children’s & Adults Safeguarding Board, 

HMR CCG’s governing body.  

Greater Manchester Devolution hit the 

health and social care sector hard in 

February 2015 and over the last 12 month 

this fast-paced project has been at the 

forefront of the work here at Healthwatch 

Rochdale, with service redesign on a 

massive scale, Healthwatch Rochdale have 

worked to ensure the residents of Rochdale 

are involved and understand this service 

change that is ongoing. 

Healthwatch Rochdale have built strong 

relationships with voluntary and third 

sector organisations, ensuring that the 

voice of all communities are heard and 

information sharing is utilised. 

On a weekly basis, we provide 

information and signposting services to 

people who are lost in the maze of the 

health and social care system, it is easy 

to take for granted what we do as a staff 

team here at Healthwatch Rochdale, we 

support the residents of the Rochdale 

Borough and make a difference to 

individual lives.  

Enter and Views are now a key role within 

our workplan and through in depth trends 

analysis Healthwatch Rochdale ensures we 

draw on this statutory right to review 

service delivery and patient feedback. 

Healthwatch Rochdale’s pool of volunteers 

has grown, with further recruitment going 

ahead and residents signing up to support 

our organisation.  

The next 12 months for Healthwatch 

Rochdale is going to be challenging with 

budget cuts, increased service redesign and 

more organisations wanting to be involved 

in what we do. As always, we strive to 

deliver the best service for the Residents of 

the Rochdale Borough.  

Kate Jones,  

Chief Executive Officer

  

Page 25



Healthwatch Rochdale 5 
 

Highlights from  
our year 

This year  
we’ve reached over 100,000 
people on 
social media 

Our volunteers help us with 
everything from Enter and 
View to office administration 

We’ve carried out 2 Enter and 
View Visits at local services 

Our reports have tackled 
issues ranging from unsafe 
discharge from hospital to 
awareness of the Heywood, 
Middleton and Rochdale GP 7-
day access service 

We’ve spoken to over 100 
young  people on Health and 
Social Care services. 

We’ve met hundreds of local 
people at our community  
events 

Page 26



Healthwatch Rochdale 6 
 

 

Who we are
We know that you want services 
that work for you, your friends and 
family. That’s why we want you to 
share your experiences of using 
health and care services with us. 
We use your voice to encourage 
those who run services to act on 

what matters to you. 

Mission Statement 

Healthwatch is a government initiative and 

every Borough in the country has a 

Healthwatch of its own. 

A statutory role of Healthwatch is to gather 

feedback from the general public about 

their experiences of Health and Social Care 

Services. At Healthwatch Rochdale the 

feedback is put onto a database and 

matched up with other people’s feedback. 

Healthwatch Rochdale helps you find out 

what Health and Social Care services are 

available locally, so you can make an 

informed choice about your care.  

Healthwatch Rochdale is the independent 

consumer watchdog set up to collect 

information and represent the views of the 

public on health and social care. 

Healthwatch Rochdale is here to give 

patients, service users and local people an 

opportunity to influence and challenge the 

way your local health services are run. 

Healthwatch Rochdale has a legal right to 

‘Enter and View’ any public funded 

organisation announced or unannounced, 

with enough evidence from the general 

public. 

Our Healthwatch Team: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kate Jones 

Chief Executive Officer 

Alexander Leach 

Operations Manager 

Elaine Grace 

Engagement and Volunteer Manager 

Claire Birch 

Communications Officer 

Page 27



Healthwatch Rochdale 7 
 

Healthwatch Rochdale Values 

Independent 

We are independent and act on behalf of 

all local people. We challenge and hold to 

account the local health and care services. 

Inclusive 

We start with local people first. We work 

for everyone and try our best to represent 

the views of everyone that uses any health 

service in Rochdale. 

Collaborative 

We work with others locally, regionally and 

nationally and we learn from people’s 

experiences. 

Responsive 

We take what we know and then translate 

it into actions that improve your local 

services. 

Credible 

We hold ourselves to the highest standards 

through openness and frank discussions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Priorities 

Every voice counts 

We recognise Rochdale borough is a diverse 

community and so through innovative 

engagement we will empower people across 

the Rochdale Borough to provide feedback 

on Health and Social Care services. 

Looking after our people 

We value all our people and commit to 

support, develop and train staff and 

volunteers to deliver on the core statutory 

functions of Healthwatch Rochdale. 

Improving infrastructure 

We will review and invest in our 

infrastructure to ensure continuous 

improvements so that we can deliver the 

best services for the people of Rochdale. 

Liaise with local, regional and national 

stakeholders 

We will partner with stakeholders to raise 

awareness of Healthwatch Rochdale and 

share relevant information. 

Remain viable and sustainable 

Healthwatch Rochdale will provide value 

for money and will work effectively within 

budget. We will look for opportunities for 

income generation and ensure financial 

probity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 28



Healthwatch Rochdale 8 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Your views on  
health and care 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



Healthwatch Rochdale 9 
 

  

Listening to local people’s 
views 

Throughout the year, we have 
spoken to residents and service 
users to find out what matters to 
them.  

Our 360◦ review carried out in Autumn 2016 

told us that you want us to concentrate on 

GP surgeries, services delivered by Pennine 

Acute Hospitals NHS Trust and Pennine Care 

NHS Foundation Trust.  This has formed the 

foundations for the work being carried out 

throughout 2017 – 18.  Throughout the year, 

2016 – 2017 we worked alongside other 

agencies, such as; 

 Hopwood Hall College, Rochdale 

Youth Service and Rochdale Young 

Advisors. This was to highlight issues 

and areas of good practice 

experienced by young people (under 

25’s). This work showed that under 

25’s were as unaware of the 7 day 

access to a GP services as the rest of 

the local community. 

 New monthly Drop in sessions at 

Castlemere Community Centre and 

BACP (Bangladesh Association of 

Community Projects) in order to 

engage with local residents from 

BAME communities: 

 Those from ‘hard to reach 

communities’ such as those with 

learning disabilities, those with 

Dementia and those with mental 

health issues were engaged through 

‘Listening Events’ held throughout 

the year. 

  

 

 

Overall, feedback received from Young 

People (under25) was predominantly 

positive.  The graph below shows that 59% 

of young people were happy with the 

service they received. Some of the 

feedback received was mixed with both 

positive and negative elements. 

 

Table 1. Feedback received from under 25’s 

Authorised Representatives from 

Healthwatch Rochdale carried out 2 Enter 

and Views over the year:  

 Healthwatch Rochdale carried out an 

unannounced visit at Rochdale 

Infirmary Urgent Care Centre to 

follow up on their visit in February 

2016. 

 Healthwatch Rochdale received 

intelligence around Beechwood 

Lodge care home residents’ family 

members and local statutory 

organisations, which led to an 

unannounced visit in January 2017 

Enter and View Authorised 
Representatives for 2016 – 17 
were: 

 Jane Jackson 

 Kate Jones 

 Alex Leach 

 Claire Birch 

 Monica Oliver 

 Jennifer Barrett 

 David Logan 

Positive, 75

Mixed, 7

Negative, 45

Page 30



Healthwatch Rochdale 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Helping  
you find the  
answers 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 11 
 

How we have helped the 
community access the care 
they need 

Healthwatch Rochdale provide residents 

with information about local health and 

social care services and how to access 

them. We signpost residents to relevant 

organisations and make referrals to an 

Independent NHS Complaints Advocate for 

those wanting help in making a complaint 

about an NHS Service. Over the last 12 

months Healthwatch Rochdale referred 41 

people for help making a complaint about 

the NHS 

We signposted 108 people to over 31 

different services through 2016/17 

As well as the NHS Independent Complaints 

Advocacy Service, some of the other 

organisations/ services signposted to 

include: 

 Alzheimer’s Society 

 Big Life Group 

 Books on prescription 

 GP Seven Day Access Service 

 Healthy Minds 

 Home Start 

 Kooth 

 Recovery Republic 

 Rochdale Metropolitan Borough 

Council 

 Rochdale and District Mind 

 SENDIASS Team 

 

 

Heywood Middleton Rochdale 
GP and Nurse Seven Day Access 
Service 

The seven-day access service allows 

patients to have access to a GP or a nurse 

at the weekend, evenings and on bank 

holidays. The service is available at four 

different hubs; one hub in each township. 

The service is designed to give patients 

more flexibility and allow those who find it 

hard to get to the doctors during the week 

to have access to a GP or a nurse. 

Healthwatch Rochdale conducted a survey 

to gather residents’ views on the service in 

which 495 people took part. The survey 

revealed that 66% of respondents were not 

aware of the service and there were 3 main 

barriers to accessing the service; location 

of the service, language barriers and poor 

communication between staff and patients 

and low awareness of the service. This 

information was shared with Heywood, 

Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 

Commissioning Group to enable them to 

improve the service according to patient’s 

needs. 

Whilst out in the community listening to 

resident’s experiences of health and social 

care services; Healthwatch Rochdale has 

been helping to raise awareness of the 

Seven Day Access Service and advising 

residents on how to make an appointment. 

Information about the service has also been 

included in presentations to Hopwood Hall 

College and community groups.  

Healthwatch Rochdale has also raised 

awareness of the service using social media 

especially around bank holiday weekends to 

remind patients they have access to a GP 

over the three-day period.  

Page 32



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 12 
 

Case Study 1 

A local resident spoke to Healthwatch 

Rochdale asking about their options after 

being told they were no longer allowed to 

use the GP seven day access service. The 

patient explained that they suffered from 

extreme anxiety issues and visiting the GP 

led to an increase in their anxiety levels. 

After frequent none attendance to pre 

booked appointments the patient was told 

she could no longer can use the service. 

The patient telephoned Healthwatch 

Rochdale for advice and information on how 

to regain access to the service, explaining 

that the none attendence of appointments 

was due to high anxiety levels.  

As the local independent voice working to 

empower residents of the Rochdale Borough 

to influence and challenge how health and 

social care services are provided, 

Healthwatch Rochdale spoke to the Seven 

Day Access Service provider informing them 

of the patients anxiety issues. 

Absolutely brilliant service. I can’t 

thank you enough for helping me to get 

access to the GP Seven Day Access 

Service.  

Local resident 

Once the service provider was aware of the 

anxiety issues they were able to take this 

into account and understand why the 

patient kept failing to attend 

appointments. The provider took the 

patients anxiety issues into consideration 

and made the decision to restore full access 

of the GP Seven Day Access Service to the 

patient with the ability to make 

appointments when needed. 

Case Study 2 

Healthwatch Rochdale received an enquiry 

earlier in the year regarding commercial                              

organisations using the NHS logo.  Many 

residents contacted the office enquiring 

how a private company had accessed their 

address details enabling them to send 

marketing materials about opticians 

offering home sight tests with the NHS logo 

clearly visible.  Healthwatch Rochdale sent 

a letter to The Outside Clinic asking for 

clarification regarding the marketing 

materials received. 

The Outside Clinic responded and informed 

Healthwatch Rochdale that they “purchase 

mailing lists to identify potential users and 

we will send information regarding our 

services to the people contained on these 

lists. We can confirm we have a contract 

with the NHS to provide a domiciliary 

optical service to qualifying housebound 

patients and this permits us to use NHS 

identity on our information. Details of this 

qualification can be found on our website 

www.outsideclinic.co.uk” 

The response received by Healthwatch 

Rochdale pointed out that residents can 

register with the Mailing Preference 

Services (MPS) which is a central register to 

ensure that details are not passed onto any 

other organisations. Their address is:                              

Mailing Preference Service, MPS Freepost 

LON20771, London, W1E 0ZT or by 

registering on www.mpsonline.org.uk. 

 

 

 

  

Page 33



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Making a  
difference  
together 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 14 
 

How your 
experiences 
are helping 
influence 
change 
Over the year Healthwatch Rochdale 

published various Project Reports and Enter 

and View Reports which are available on 

our website.  From these Healthwatch 

Rochdale make a number of 

recommendations to suggest how services 

for Health and Social Care may be 

improved, such as: 

 Informing departments, partners and 

patients more effectively on services 

Rochdale Infirmary Urgent Care 

Centre provide. (Enter and View 

Report, Rochdale Infirmary 

21/10/96) 

 Produce up to date training 

matrix/log to enable effective 

tracking of training dates for staff 

members, (Enter and View Report, 

Beechwood Lodge Care Home 

13/1/17) 

Other reports can be found on our website 

www.healthwatchrochdale.org.uk/reports/  

Working with other 
organisations 

Throughout the year staff and volunteers 

from Healthwatch Rochdale worked 

alongside many partner agencies such as 

the HMR Caring Together Network, 

attended on a regular  

basis by Care Home staff together with the 

Medicines Optimisation Team (HMR CCG),  

Mental Health Outreach Nurse together 

with a Bladder and Bowel Specialist Nurse.  

This network supports care homes from 

across the Borough to access advice and 

support they need on an ongoing basis. 

 

Working with partners such as this and 

many others allows information and 

evidence to be shared and for 

improvements in practice to be shared. 

Healthwatch Rochdale carries out this 

collaborative method of working across 

many other partners, including the Care 

Quality Commission (CQC), for example; 

 

 Healthwatch Rochdale hold quarterly 

meetings with the Inspection 

Manager of the CQC to discuss 

intelligence and enter and view visits  

 Feedback from service users and 

family members together with 

information from the CQC was key to 

the decision to carry out an 

unannounced Enter and View at 

Beechwood Lodge Care Home on 13th 

January, 2017. 

 

 

Page 35

http://www.healthwatchrochdale.org.uk/reports/


 

Healthwatch Rochdale 15 
 

 How we’ve 
worked 
with our   
community 
Healthwatch Rochdale have 
supported the involvement of local 
people in the work we do through 
the ongoing volunteer program.   

The roles volunteers carry out are:  

 

 Board Members 

 Engagement Support Volunteers 

 Admin Support 

 Enter and View 

 Marketing and Publicity   

Through 2016 – 17 volunteers were 

recruited and trained to undertake the 

‘Enter and View’ work.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This training includes ‘An Introduction to 

Healthwatch Rochdale’ ‘Enter and View’ 

training and safeguarding training for both 

children and adults.  All training is 

delivered prior to Enter and View 

Volunteers starting with visits.  

Other training is given to the variety of 

volunteers, such as Gathering Feedback and 

Locality training which offers advice and 

guidance on how to successfully obtain 

feedback from people and also the Health 

and Social Care landscape and how they fit 

and work (or don’t) together. 

Engagement Support Volunteers have 

supported us at Drop In Sessions across the 

Borough as well as the Feedback Events 

carried out with partner organisations held 

throughout the year.  

This training developed and delivered in 

house is complemented through access to 

external training courses such as the 

comprehensive training offered by the 

Rochdale Children’s Safeguarding Board and 

the Rochdale Adults Safeguarding Board as 

well as others.   

 

Page 36



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 16 
 

  

 

 

 

It starts 
with you 
 

  

Page 37



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 17 
 

#It Starts 
With You 
Healthwatch Rochdale understand and 

identify what residents want and need by 

listening to their experiences of health and 

social care services. 

Sharing feedback with us helps to build a 

picture of where services are doing well 

and where they can be improved, enabling 

us to make recommendations for change. 

Sharing your views helps to ensure Health 

and Social care services are delivered to 

the standard that you expect.  

Beechwood Lodge Care Home 

Thanks to your feedback, recommendations 

for improvement were made to Beechwood 

Lodge Care Home.  

Two sisters came into the Healthwatch 

Rochdale office and spoke of their concerns 

about the quality of their mother’s care at 

Beechwood Lodge Care Home. Their mother 

was suffering with Vascular Dementia and 

had been placed at Beechwood Lodge 

because it was advertised as providing 

expert specialised dementia care. 

The two sisters were concerned about a 

lack of communication from staff and 

managers and wanted to know 

 

 What does expert specialised 

dementia care consist of? 

 What training staff have received to 

provide this?  

Healthwatch Rochdale decided to carry out 

an unannounced Enter and View visit at 

Beechwood Lodge to observe the nature 

and quality of care and to listen to the 

experiences of residents and their families 

as well as the views of staff members.  

On the Enter and View visit authorised 

representatives observed good practice but 

also identified areas of improvement that 

would help to raise the standard of care 

and service at Beechwood Lodge.  

“Manager appears to know 

residents well and by name. 

Appears to have a good rapport 

with all residents she spoke to” 

Enter and View observation            

Recommendations included: 

 Produce an up to date training 

matrix to enable effective tracking 

of training dates for staff members 

 Review activities within the home to 

ensure activities are catered for 

residents needs and abilities. 

 Review patient and visitor’s 

questionnaire to enable review of 

positive or negative information. 

 Continue to provide good and 

effective care whilst maintaining a 

great relationship that Beechwood 

Lodge care home staff have with the 

residents.  

“Thank you all for visiting and we 

will take the recommendations on 

board. Your visit was welcomed 

and all the staff and residents 

found you all very nice and caring” 

Care Home manager  

 

 

Page 38



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 18 
 

 

 

 

 

Our plans 
for next 
year 

Page 39



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 19 
 

What next? 
Healthwatch Rochdale carried 
out a public consultation to 
determine the key topic areas 
of work from April 2017 to 
March 2018. 

Feedback received throughout the previous 

year was collated to highlight key trends, 

forming the basis of the topic areas that 

went out for public consultation. 

The topic areas that went out for public 

consultation were: 

 Access to Services 

 Fit for purpose 

 Quality of Care 

 Safeguarding 

 Pennine Acute Hospital Trust 

 Greater Manchester Devolution 

 Community Services 

 Children’s Services 

 GP Services 

 Care Homes 

 Disability 

 Youth Services 

 Hospital Services 

 Communication 

 Social Care Complaints Pathway 

 Homelessness 

 

 

 

Following public consultation the top 4 

topic areas chosen by Rochdale Borough 

residents were : 

Pennine Acute Hospitals Trust 

Access to Services 

Primary Care – GP 

Quality of Care 

 

Over the next twelve months Healthwatch 

Rochdale will focus on the four key topic 

areas in the following ways : 

 Use Healthwatch Rochdale’s 

statutory powers to Enter and View 

twelve different GP practices in the 

Borough 

 Conduct surveys to gather specific 

feedback on particular services 

 Work closely with Pennine Acute 

Hospitals Trust to scrutinise ongoing 

work and changes happening within 

the Trust, always ensuring the 

patients voice is heard 

Healthwatch Rochdale will continue to 

gather feedback from local residents and 

seldom heard groups including : 

 BAME 

 Mental Health 

 Older People 

 Youth 

 Disability 

 

  

Page 40



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 20 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our people 
 

  

Page 41



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 21 
 

Decision making 

The role of the Board is to help determine 

the strategic direction of Healthwatch 

Rochdale and to ensure it provides a 

representative voice for as many users of 

health and social care services in the 

Borough as possible. 

 

At the board meetings, members review 

intelligence on a monthly basis and in 

partnership with the Chief Executive 

Officer make decisions on how to address 

concerns and feedback trends through 

escalations and Enter and views.  

How we involve the public  
and volunteers 

We involved members of the local 

community and volunteers in the work we 

do by: 

 We recruit Board Members from 

members of the local community 

who have the right skills and 

experience to take responsibility and 

run the organisation 

 We recruit Enter and View volunteers 

representative of the local 

community who, after training, can 

take part in ‘Enter and View’ visits. 

which can be undertaken in many 

publicly funded services such as 

hospitals, care homes and GP 

surgeries 

 We regularly recruit other volunteers 

such as engagement support 

volunteers, administration, publicity 

and Ambassadors. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 22 
 

  

 

 

 

 

Our finances 
 

  

Page 43



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 23 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Income £ 

Funding received from local authority to deliver local 

Healthwatch statutory activities 

156,067.57 

Additional income  7,150.00 

Total income 163,217.57 

  

Expenditure  

Operational costs 46,328.00 

Staffing costs 103,369.58 

Total expenditure 149,697.58 

Balance brought forward 13,519.99 

Page 44



 

Healthwatch Rochdale 24 
 

Contact us

 

Get in touch 

 

Address:  

Unique Enterprise Centre 

Belfield Road 

Rochdale 

OL16 2UP 

 

Phone number: 01706 249575 

 

Email: info@healthwatchrochdale.org.uk 

 

Website: www.healthwatchrochdale.org.uk 

 

Twitter: @HWRochdale 

 

Facebook: Healthwatch Rochdale 

 

Linkedin: Healthwatch Rochdale 

 

Youtube: Healthwatch Rochdale 

 

 

 

We will be making this annual report publicly available on 30 June 2017 by publishing it on our 

website and sharing it with Healthwatch England, CQC, NHS England, Clinical Commissioning 

Group/s, Overview and Scrutiny Committee/s, and our local authority. 

 

We confirm that we are using the Healthwatch Trademark (which covers the logo and 

Healthwatch brand) when undertaking work on our statutory activities as covered by the 

licence agreement. 

 

If you require this report in an alternative format please contact us at the address above.  

 

© Copyright Healthwatch Rochdale 2017 

Healthwatch Rochdale LTD. Registered Company Number 08429721 

Page 45

mailto:info@healthwatchrochdale.org.uk
http://www.healthwatchrochdale.org.uk/


Subject: Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Status:  Publication

Report to: Health and Wellbeing Board 

Cabinet Members: Cllr J Beswick, Portfolio 
Holder for  Health and Well Being 

Date: 18th July 2017
 

Report of: Director of Public Health and 
Wellbeing 

Author Email:    
wendy.meston@rochdale.gov.uk

Authors: Wendy Meston, Consultant in     
Public Health

Tel: 01706 927089

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To outline how the Board will fulfil its statutory duty to produce a Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 

1.2 To outline a proposed development and consultation plan for completing a 
refreshed JSNA by October 2017  in time to inform a refreshed Locality 
Plan/Health and Wellbeing Strategy and inform integrated commissioning 
intentions for 2018/19

2 Recommendations
Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to:

2.1 Agree proposed plans for JSNA development and consultation for the refresh. 
2.2 That the Board agree to hold an Assembly to discuss JSNA priorities

                        in September 2017
2.3       That the Board receive an update and paper on proposed priorities at their 
           next meeting in September 2017

Reason for recommendation

         To fulfil the Board’s statutory duties of delivering a JSNA to inform local 
strategies and plans

3 Background

3.1 One of the core statutory duties of the Health and Wellbeing Board include the 
preparation of the local Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and a Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy which locally is out Locality Plan

3.2 JSNA is a locally developed process to identify the health and wellbeing 
needs (and assets) of a local area, including the current and future health and 
social care needs of the population across the whole life course, from pre-
birth to old age.  

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



The JSNA informs the priorities for the Locality Plan, Commissioning and 
delivery of health and wellbeing outcomes and services.

4. Key points for consideration

4.1     The local JSNA process was undertaken initially in 2011 and was refreshed in 
                     2014/15 In line with a three cycle a refresh will be completed to inform plans 
                     and strategies for  2018/19

4.2     In order to inform integrated commissioning intentions and refresh of the 
          Locality Plan a refresh of the JSNA has been agreed for October 2017

4.3     The leadership of the JSNA is with the Director of Health and Wellbeing. A 
                      working group has been established of public health, intelligence, performance  
                      and policy leads from the Council and the CCG (Clincial Commissioning 
                      Group) led by the Consultant in Public Health.

4.4      Due to the time available to meet the first deadline two phases for the JSNA
                       refresh are proposed. Phase 1 will focus on a refresh of the intelligence 

Contained in the previous JSNA with an enhanced section on health and
                       social care. Consultation on priorities will be primarily done at a joint Health 
                       and Wellbeing Board Assembly in September and existing groups and forums 
                       within the timeframe. Questions will be based around identifying any 
                       perceived gaps in the data, interpreting the data and identifying what this 
                       means for the stakeholders in question and identifying top priorities for action.

4.5      Resident and patient views on needs and priorities will be taken from patient, 
                       service user and public engagement findings from the last two years. The 
                       viability of a resident survey is being explored 

4.6 Phase 2 will continue to develop a public facing intelligence website linked to 
                       the Health and Wellbeing Board and to develop further intelligence products
                       on additional priority areas identified during Phase 1 including identification of 
                       a small number of priorities for deep dives.

5         Risk Assessment Implications 

                     Risk that the refreshed Locality Plan and commissioning intentions are not 
                   informed by the most recent intelligence and evidence

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 47



Subject: Health and Employment Status:  Publication

Report to: Health and Wellbeing Board 

Cabinet Members: Cllr J Beswick, Portfolio 
Holder for  Health and Well Being and Cllr 
Peter Williams Portfolio Holder for Business, 
Skills and Employment

Date: 18th July 2017
 

Report of: Director of Public Health and 
Wellbeing and Director of Economy

Author Email:    
susan.ayres@rochdale.gov.uk
wendy.meston@rochdale.gov.uk

Authors: Susan Ayres – Economic 
Affairs Manager and Wendy Meston, 
Consultant in Public Health

Tel: 01706 925636/01706 927089

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide members of the Board with an overview of the Greater 
Manchester    Health and Employment Programme 

1.2To update the Board on local work to develop action on health and 
employment and request support for this programme

1.3To confirm the commitment of Board partners to lead by example as 
employers.

2 Recommendations

2.1 That the Board note the report and endorse the proposed work as the way     
forward to integrate and develop health and employment work locally and 
contribute to the Greater Manchester Health and Employment Programme.
2.2 That the Board endorses that all partners lead by example as exemplar 
employers in promoting health and wellbeing for their own organisations and 
workforce.

Reason for recommendation

2.3  To ensure that Rochdale contributes and benefits from the GM Health 
and Employment Programme and to clearly identify local action we will take to 
improve health and employment outcomes for local people and employers

3 Background

3.1 Greater Manchester Leaders have set ambitious vision statements in 
relation to

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



            both work and skills and population health. They have set out a joint proposal 
across the GM Health and Social Care Partnership and the Combined 

Authority to develop a whole population approach to work and health

Greater Manchester Population Health Plan 2017 – 2021:  To achieve the 
greatest and fastest improvement to the health, wealth and wellbeing of the 2.8 
million people who live in Greater Manchester

Work & Skills Strategy 2016 – 2019:   Our ambition is to create an integrated 
eco- system, which has the individual and employer at its heart, and that better 
responds to the needs of residents, business and contributes to the growth and 
productivity of the GM economy.

Greater Manchester faces a challenge in terms of the number of people with 
long- term health conditions being in employment. The national average is 65.3% 
but in Greater Manchester it is only 59.2%. In Greater Manchester there are also 
225,000 people out of work and claiming benefits which is more than the total 
population of Bury, Rochdale or Tameside.  Of these, 61%, or 140,000 
people, are claiming as a result of a health condition.  In Rochdale Borough 
16,190 residents are out of work and claiming benefits with the largest group 
being those with health conditions. This is 12% of the working age population 
compared to 10% across the North West and 8.4% nationally.

Leaders recognise that there is a co-dependent relationship between health 
and work.  Good quality work is good for health, and economic growth relies on a 
healthy, productive workforce.   This is why the Work and Skills Strategy 
identifies integration of health commissioning and delivery with work and skill 
support as an objective, and 
            the GM Population Health Plan has made employment a key priority within 
the ‘Living 
            Well’ theme.

There is significant synergy across both strategies relating to work, skills and 
population health. The challenge is to maximise opportunities for collective 
endeavour to deliver shared outcomes and priorities.  To this end the GM 

Combined Authority and GM Health and Social Care Partnership leadership have 
formed a joint programme board to drive a system wide approach to health and 
work.

Locally we have for many years recognised the importance of links between 
health,
           wellbeing, skills and employment and we have several local examples of good 
           practice that outline how joint work can improve outcomes for residents. Our 
current
           Locality Plan outlined that we want more families to be economically active 
and family
           income to be increased. What we have identified is that we do not have an up 
to date 
           action plan for joint action on work and employment.

Page 49



4. Key points for consideration

A GM Health and Employment Board has been established to oversee a 
transformational five point plan to deliver improved health and prosperity.

           Help) Service,  

Transformational five-point plan
Target Group Status Activity and purpose

1. In work GAP Support for employers to make good quality work 
and healthy workplaces with the public sector 
leading by example

2. In work but at 
risk

GAP 
and 
priority 
action

Creating an effective early intervention model for 
people in work who become ill to reduce risk of 
loss of job. To be known as Working Well (Early 
help) Service. National Fit for Work Service not 
meeting all local need.

3. Recently 
unemployed

GAP Enhanced health support offer with Job Centre 
Plus to minimise out of work period

4. Longer term out 
of work – but 
return possible 
with support

Current 
service

Current activity is the Working Well 2 programme 
(Ingeus). The GMCA has started the 
commissioning process for Working Well 3 
(nationally called the Work and Health 
Programme)

5. Economically 
inactive – 
complex health 
barrier

GAP Largest group with 12000 in Rochdale who are 
economically inactive but want a job with the 
majority having disabilities and health conditions. 
Some support available from Job Centre Plus.

           Initial focus for additional GM work is proposed to work with those in work but 
at risk 
           by developing a new Fit for Work service that will be known as Working Well 
(Early
           Help). This is subject to further work and transformation fund development.

The ‘ask’ of localities by the GMCA and GM Health and Social Care 
Partnership (GMH&SCP) is:

 Strategic ownership across CCG, LA and Health and Wellbeing Boards 
of health and employment as a work programme

 Integration with Locality early intervention and prevention plans
 Joint operational approach with LA Work and Skills Leads
 GP Federation/Cluster and practice engagement
 Locality capacity to co-ordinate, develop and communicate
 Co-design with the GMCA/GMH&SCP of GM programmes

The GM Programme Team will be responsible for:
 Overall programme management and GM governance
 Development of a Transformation Fund bid

Page 50



 Influencing national policy
 GM-wide stakeholder engagement and support for Localities
 Procurement, funding options appraisals, evaluation and Cost Benefit 

Analysis
 The development of an Expert Advisory Group

A workshop of local partners from a range of relevant organisations including 
Job Centre Plus, Pennine Acute, the CCG, Social Care, Public Health, 
Economic Affairs and the GM Programme Team was held on the 6th July 2017 
to discuss both the GM programmes and also to develop a local action plan. 
This action plan will be developed and presented to a future Health and 
Wellbeing Board for approval. 

5. Risk Assessment Implications 

9.1  Failure to actively engage in this work, risks the design and 
commissioning of services that do not meet the needs of borough residents 
and the resources that could come from the Transformation Fund 
programmes.
9.2 Rochdale residents with long term health conditions will be less likely to 
remain or gain employment than in other areas of the UK without integrated 
approaches to work and health. 

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 51


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Shadow Integrated Commissioning Board
	ICB 9-5-17
	ICB 13-6-17

	5 Health and Wellbeing Board - Draft Work Programme 2017/18
	6 Healthwatch Rochdale - Annual Report 2016/17
	7 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
	8 Health and Employment

